NOTICE OF POSTPONEMENT
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Historic District Commission meeting scheduled for Wednesday, July 5,
2023 is postponed at the request of the Chair to Wednesday, July 12, 2023. The meeting will begin at 6:30 and will
be held in the Eileen Dondero Foley Council Chambers, Municipal Complex, 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire.

SITE WALK: 244 MARCY STREET JULY 12, 2023 AT 5:45PM

MEETING OF
THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom
(See below for more details) *

6:30 p.m. July 12,2023
AGENDA (revised on July 3, 2023)

The Board’s action in these matters has been deemed to be quasi-judicial in nature.
If any person believes any member of the Board has a conflict of interest,
that issue should be raised at this point or it will be deemed waived.

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. June 07, 2023

2 June 14, 2023

II1. ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS
1. 1 Walton Alley

2. 132-134 Middle Street

3. 303 Pleasant Street

4, 3 Walker Street

5. 111 Bridge Street, Unit 205
6. 111 Bridge Street

7. 92 Pleasant Street

8. 70 Court Street

9. 37 Whidden Street

10. 138 Maplewood Avenue
11. 145 Maplewood Avenue
12. 161 Deer Street

13. 179 Pleasant Street

14. 112 Mechanic Street

15. 401 State Street

16. 189 Gates Street

III.  WORK SESSIONS (OLD BUSINESS)



A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Work Session requested by Christopher Daniel
Fruend, owner, for property located at 37 Prospect Street, wherein permission is requested to
allow new construction to an existing structure (add separate first and second floor additions) as
per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 141 as
Lot 16 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) and Historic Districts.

IV.  PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Petition of 129 State Street, LLC, owner, for property located at 129 State Street,
wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing structure
(modifications to windows, skylights, door, canopy and railing design, size and location) and add
masonry parapet as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 107 as Lot 47 and lies within the Character District 4 (CD4) and Historic

Districts.

2. Petition of Charles J. Silva Jr. and Margaret M. Moran, owners, for property located
at 434 Marcy Street, wherein permission is requested to allow new construction to an existing
structure (create 2™ floor and attic addition over existing 1-story footprint with overhang, create
a 1-story rear entry and bay addition with new landing and stairs, and remove and replace
existing shed) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 102 as Lot 41 and lies within the General Residence B (GRB) and Historic
Districts.

3. Petition of Northern Tier Real Estate Acq. & Dev., LL.C, owner, for property located
at 172 Hanover Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an
existing structure (remove existing doorway and replace it with new a window) as per plans on
file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 126 as Lot 1A and lies
within the Character District 5 (CD5), Downtown Overlay and Historic Districts.

4. Petition of Coventry Realty, LL.C, owner, for property located at 111 State Street,
wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing structure (at State
Street facade replace existing left side door and window with a Nana window, reconstruct the
right chimney at parapet wall and remove left chimney and replace with new dormer) as per
plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 107 as Lot 50
and lies within the Character District 4 (CD4) and Historic Districts.

5. Petition of 202 Court Street Property Group, LLC, owner, for property located at 202
Court Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing
structure (install a Nana door where one currently does not exist) as per plans on file in the
Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 116 as Lot 35 and lies within the
Character District 4-L.1 (CD4-L1) and Historic Districts.

V. WORK SESSIONS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Work Session requested by John Galt, owner, for property located at 14 Market
Square, wherein permission is requested to allow new construction to an existing structure (add



curbed rooftop addition and dormers) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 107 as Lot 29 and lies within the Character District 5 (CD5),
Downtown Overlay and Historic Districts.

2. Work Session requested by Allison Melanie Piper, owner, for property located at 236
Union Street, wherein permission is requested to allow new construction to an existing structure
(add second floor addition over existing footprint) as per plans on file in the Planning
Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 135 as Lot 22 and lies within the General
Residence C (GRC) and Historic Districts.

V. ADJOURMENT

*Members of the public also have the option to join this meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting 1D
and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or copy
and paste this into your web browser:

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/ WN_oyBv77C8R_y82-IMkf3Bsw



https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_oyBv77C8R_y82-lMkf3Bsw

MEETING OF
THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

6:30 p.m. June 07, 2023

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman Jon Wyckoff; Vice-Chair Margot Doering; City Council
Representative Rich Blalock; Members Reagan Ruedig, Martin
Ryan, David Adams, Dr. Dan Brown, Karen Bouffard

MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Alternate Johanna Landis

ALSO PRESENT: Nicholas Cracknell, Principal Planner, Planning Department

Chairman Wyckoff called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. City Council Representative Blalock
had not arrived at the meeting at this time. Chairman Wyckoff asked for the May 3 and May 10
minutes to be approved.

April 05, 2023 Minutes

The minutes were approved as amended by unanimous vote, 7-0. (Ms. Ruedig asked that it be
noted that she was recused from the Portsmouth Housing Committee public hearing).

May 03, 2023 Minutes

The minutes were approved as presented by unanimous vote, 7-0.

l. ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS
1. 333 New Castle Avenue (LUHD-610)

Ms. Ruedig recused herself. The item was addressed separately from the others. The request was
to clad the rear of the house in HardiePlank in kind with the other sections of the building.

Mr. Adams moved to approve the item, seconded by Vice-Chair Doering. The motion passed by
unanimous vote, 6-0.

2. 795 Middle Street (LUHD-613)

The request was to place a wood fence at the front of the yard. After further discussion, it was
noted that the property was on a corner and that the fence would be on both fronts.

3. 49 Sheafe Street (LUHD-612)



The request was to put HardiePlank siding on one side of the building near the walkway between
49 and 43 Sheafe Street. Some issues were discussed, including the tight exposure and the reveal.

Stipulations:
1. The Hardie siding shall be installed with the smooth side out and with no running bonds.
2. The existing reveal shall be matched with no more than 4 inches of exposure.

3. The door shall be replaced in kind.

4. 394 Pleasant Street (LUHD-614)

The request was to place an aluminum gutter along the front fagade and add a fence on the side
of the property. The Commission had several questions, and the item was pulled for a separate
vote for further discussion. The Commission said the fence was good but thought that the gutter
should not be installed on any portions that had curved molding.

Ms. Ruedig moved to approve the fence but not the gutter installation on any curved molding
portions except on a flat fascia board. Vice-Chair Doering seconded. The motion passed by
unanimous vote, 7-0.

5. 18 Walden Street (LU-23-52)

The request was for an HVAC condenser. Mr. Cracknell said if the applicant was granted the
variance, he proposed to put the condenser under the deck on the back of the house and paint the
chase to match the siding or the trim. Mr. Cracknell said there were two options and that the
applicant preferred Option 2, which was to put the condenser under the deck. He said the
applicant would have to return for screening if he chose Option 1.

Stipulation: Option #2, placing the condenser under the deck, shall be used.

6. 177 State Street, Unit 1 (LUHD-616)

The request was approval for two lights on the bar holding a sign.

7. 135 Daniel Street, Unit A102 (LUHD-619)

There wasn’t enough information in the packet presented to the Commission.

The Commission decided to continue the item to the June 14 meeting.

Note: A vote was taken at the end of the Administrative Approval Items.

8. 172 South Street (LUHD-620)

The request was to place a condenser under the stairs behind the lattice on the side of the house.



Stipulation: the condenser shall be screened by the same style lattice that exists on the stairs.

9. 11 Market Street, Unit 3 (LUHD-621)
The request was to place a condenser on the back of the building, with the conduit running up the
brick in the alleyway.

Stipulation: The conduit shall be painted the color of the brick wall.
10. 28 New Castle Avenue (LUHD-622)

Mr. Cracknell said the petition was previously approved by the Commission but the applicant
was seeking administrative approval for a few items. The applicant Suzanna Barber was present
and said she wanted to bump out the stairs, use a fieldstone veneer for the basement skirting, and
use a cedar shake on the top half of the house and a mahogany clapboard on the bottom half. She
said the condensers were close to the gas line but a professional said they would not have to be
relocated, and if there were problems, the vent liner could be moved.

Note: At this point, City Council Representative Blalock arrived at the meeting.

11. 50 Daniel Street (LUHD-617)

Mr. Cracknell said the item was previously before the Commission and the applicant responded
to several stipulations. He said the applicant provided a cross-section of how the door would
work and that he would also replace the standing seam, reinstall the lights, replace the trim, and
cover up the brick with PVC paneling.

12. 60 Penhallow Street (LUHD-623)

The request was for sign lighting.

13. 111 State Street (LUHD-624)

The request was for sign lighting.

Ms. Ruedig moved to continue Item 7, 135 Daniel Street, Unit A102, to the June 14 meeting.
Councilor Blalock seconded. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

Ms. Ruedig moved to approve Items 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 with their respective
stipulations, seconded by Vice-Chair Doering. The motion massed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

1. CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL- EXTENSIONS

1. One year extension of the Certificate of Approval originally granted on May 04, 2022
requested by, 2082 IL 50 VZ, LLC, owner, for property located at 404 Islington Street,
wherein permission was requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing structure (removal
and infill of (1) door, installation of mechanical equipment and installation of an ADA compliant



ramp) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map
145 as Lot 33 and lies within the Character District 4-L.2 (CD4-L2) and Historic Districts. (LU-
22-74)

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mr. Ryan moved to grant the one-year extension, seconded by City Council Representative
Blalock. The motion passed by unanimous vote,7-0.

I1l.  WORK SESSIONS (OLD BUSINESS)

A. REQUEST TO POSTPONE- Work Session requested by Christopher Daniel
Fruend, owner, for property located at 37 Prospect Street, wherein permission is requested to
allow new construction to an existing structure (add separate first and second floor additions) as
per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 141 as
Lot 16 and lies within the General Residence A (GRA) and Historic Districts. (LUHD-563)

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Ms. Ruedig moved to postpone the petition to the July 5 meeting, seconded by Vice-Chair
Doering. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS (OLD BUSINESS)

A. Petition of 129 State Street, LL.C, owner, for property located at 129 State Street,
wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to an existing structure (add
masonry parapet) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 107 as Lot 47 and lies within the Character District 4 (CD4) and Historic
Districts. (LU-22-78)

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

Shayne Forsley of Hampshire Development Corporation was present on behalf of the applicant,
with the architect Howard Spivak and Steve Wilson. Mr. Forsley stated that they were before the
Commission just for the installation of the masonry parapet and that they would return for a
work session to present additional changes that would include window reconfigurations and
elevations. Mr. Cracknell noted that the work session or a public hearing/work session would be
advertised and the legal ad would be clear about all the other changes. Mr. Forsley reviewed the
petition and said the parapet would extend from 129 State Street’s existing wall up to the roof.

Ms. Ruedig asked how the wall next to the existing chimneys would be finished. Mr. Forsley
said the chimneys on the Sheafe Street and State Street sides were integrated and the parapet
would butt into each one. Mr. Ryan asked how the masonry cap would be constructed and held
down. Mr. Spivak explained that it would come down more than what was shown on the plan
and that they would revise the detail and submit it at the work session. He said a copper cap



would be more in keeping than a stone one. Chairman Wyckoff asked why the roof flashing was
shown only on one side. Mr. Spivak said that would also be presented at the work session.

The Commission discussed whether the parapet should be approved without answers to questions
like flashing and the masonry cap. Mr. Cracknell said there should be general agreement on the
parapet that evening because it was a big change. He asked what kind of brick would be used.
Mr. Forsley said they would match the existing brick after cleaning the existing masonry.

Chairman Wyckoff opened the public hearing.

SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION

Mark Bodie of 121 State Street said he wasn’t happy with the process because it had gone back
and forth. He said there wasn’t one faux parapet in the city and that the applicant had assured
him that he would change the parapet so that it would only be on his property. He said the owner
had two years to communicate with the condo association and the other neighbors about the deck
and utilities plans but waited until the end. He said the plan was being simultaneously submitted
while the back of the previous addition was being ripped down. He said the neighbors had the
right to speak to those issues. Chairman Wyckoff said the presentation that evening was just
about the parapet. It was further discussed. [Video timestamp 51:46]

Marie Bodie of 121 State Street said the building was demolished the day before and left a
massive hole, with no fencing around it. She said they were wrangled at the last minute to sign
an agreement that they would agree with the parapet but that there had been misrepresentations
and the applicant was working on new plans. She said she was appalled that the applicant came
to a public hearing that evening when it wasn’t advertised.

No one else spoke, and Chairman Wyckoff closed the public hearing.
DISCUSSION AND DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Chairman Wyckoff read the public notice and said it only concerned the parapet. He said any
other details that might have been put into the packet were not advertised and were immediately
removed and would be discussed at the July work session. Mr. Ryan said he saw no reason to
decide on anything that evening, given that the parapet still had unresolved issues, and he
suggested that it be postponed. Other Commissioners agreed. Mr. Cracknell said it made sense to
defer the parapet but the applicant had to decide whether he would return for a work session or a
public hearing that would include the parapet. He said it was meaningless to have two public
hearings when the parapet was integral to the bigger picture and he suggested continuing the
petition for the parapet approval.

Mr. Ryan moved to continue the discussion of the brick parapet to the July 7 meeting, seconded
by Vice-Chair Doering. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW BUSINESS)



Ms. Ruedig recused herself from Petitions 1 and 2.

1. Petition of Portsmouth Housing Authority, owner, for property located at 444 Pleasant
Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to existing structures
(replace windows on both structures) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 102 as Lot 54 and lies within the General Residence B
(GRB) and Historic Districts. (LU-23-64)

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION
The applicant wasn’t present.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mr. Adams moved to postpone the petition to the end of the agenda, seconded by Mr. Ryan. The
motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

Note: The petition was later voted on because the applicant did not arrive.

Vice-Chair Doering moved to continue the petition to the July 7 meeting, seconded by Councilor
Blalock. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

2. Petition of Torrington Brown, LLC & Single Venture, LLC, owners, for property
located at 132-134 Middle Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations
to an existing structure (repair rotted trim, repair roof, repoint bricks, replace gutters, etc.) as per
plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 127 as Lot 12
and lies within the Character District 4-L1 (CD4-L1) and Historic Districts. (LU-23-70)

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

Project architect Tracy Kozak was present on behalf of the applicant. She said it was a major
deferred maintenance project that would replace and repair in kind. She said they would replace
the roofing material and rebuild the front steps. She noted that wrought-iron railings were added
to match what was originally there. She said the biggest issue was the steps and that they
proposed to keep the side walls of the stoop but replace the tread and risers with a colored
concrete to match the brownstone, a sample of which she showed the Commission.

Vice-Chair Doering said the Commission was previously concerned about the slate at the top.
Ms. Kozak said the right side of the building had the original slate and wood boxes and wood hip
coverings, and they proposed to repair and rebuild where they were missing. She said the ones
on the back would have copper flashing. She said they would restore the existing wood trim on
the front and replace it on the left side of the building where it was removed. She said they
proposed Echo Star synthetic rounded slate and had two color options, one with red and gray
stripes (Option 1) and one with all gray but that the applicant preferred Option 1. She showed
samples to the Commission. Ms. Bouffard asked if the side walls on the front steps were
concrete. Ms. Kozak said they were brownstone and in good shape and would not be changed.



The synthetic material was further discussed. Ms. Kozak said if they went with the square
corners, it was available two inches narrower. She said the existing ones were 8-to inches wide.
Chairman Wyckoff asked that Ms. Kozak return with more information on the slates. Mr. Ryan
asked about the wrought iron. Ms. Kozak said it was custom wrought iron and that they would
replicate the post detail, and she discussed the details. Vice-Chair Doering asked what would
happen to the old aluminum rail on the modern cement side entrance. Ms. Kozak said it would
be cleaned and painted if necessary. She noted that the gutters were being placed and she showed
samples of them to the Commission. Vice-Chair Doering asked if they would follow the existing
patterns. Ms. Kozak said some were missing and would be put back. Vice-Chair Doering said the
two doorways were prominent and the way the gutters framed them was not symmetrical. She
asked that they bend the same way or that the lines be a little cleaner, and Ms. Kozak agreed.
Chairman Wyckoff asked how the foundation brownstone would be repaired Ms. Kozak said
they would use a patch. Mr. Cracknell said all the shingles at the top were much narrower and
more aligned than the bottom and asked if it was a photo shop error. It was further discussed.

Mr. Ryan suggested showing a graphic projection of every slate.

Chairman Wyckoff suggested removing the roof from the application and voting on the other
items. The Commissioners said they liked the multicolor option for the roof.

Chairman Wyckoff opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one was present to speak, and Chairman Wyckoff closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
Mr. Ryan moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application, with the following
stipulation:

1. The shingle design and roof details shall return for approval.
Vice-Chair Doering seconded. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.
Mr. Ryan said the project would fit within the context of the surrounding architecture and would
be in keeping with the character of the Historic District. Vice-Chair Doering said it would relate
to the historic and architectural value of the existing structure.
Ms. Ruedig resumed her voting seat.
3. Petition of Shawn and Michiyo Bardong, owners, for property located at 39 Dearborn
Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior construction to an existing structure
(replace existing roofing structure, add a new side and entry additions) as per plans on file in the
Planning Department. Said property is shown on Assessor Map 140 as Lot 3 and lies within the

General Residence A (GRA) and Historic Districts. (LU-23-5)

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION



Project architect Amy Dutton was present on behalf of the applicants and reviewed the petition.
She said the mudroom would be replaced by a glass breezeway that would connect it to a low
Colonial and there would be a small bump out for the mudroom in the existing kitchen. She said
they wanted to remove the chimney on the right and replace it with a gas fireplace. She said the
size of the well egress was changed. She said they received BOA approval for the chimney and
the windows. She said the materials would match those on the Cape, which currently had vinyl
siding but would be replaced with HardiePlank, and the Cape’s sills would be replicated. She
discussed the windows and trim.

Ms. Ruedig said the 6/1 windows in the connector piece were narrow and could be 2/1 or 2/2 to
break it up a bit. Ms. Dutton agreed that 2/1 windows would look better. Mr. Adams said
shingles were placed under the threshold of the double doors and thought they should be
replaced with Azek. Ms. Dutton agreed. Vice-Chair Doering said the windows seemed the same
as shown at the previous work sessions. Ms. Dutton said she changed the windows so that they
were about two inches smaller but didn’t update them. Vice-Chair Doering said the Commission
would need the new window schedule to sign off on. Mr. Ryan said the constructability of the
flat spot in the existing house near the double door entrance should be improved but thought
otherwise that it was a good project and was glad that the problematic chimney was removed.

Chairman Wyckoff opened the public hearing.
SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION
No one spoke, and Chairman Wyckoff closed the public hearing.
DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
City Council Representative Blalock moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the petition
as presented, with the following stipulation:
1. The final windows shall be submitted for administrative approval.

Vice-Chair Doering seconded the motion.

Councilor Blalock said the project would conserve and enhance property values and would be
compatible with the design of surrounding property values.

The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

Note: at this point in the meeting, the Commission addressed Public Hearings — New Business
Petition 1 for the Portsmouth Housing Authority at 444 Pleasant Street because the applicant still
had not arrived.

Vice-Chair Doering moved to continue the petition to the July 7 meeting, seconded by Councilor
Blalock. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.



VI.  WORK SESSIONS (NEW BUSINESS)

1. Work Session requested by JJCM Realty, LLC & Topnotch Properties, LLC, owners,
for property located at 232 South Street, wherein permission is requested to allow the new
construction of a detached one car garage as per plans on file in the Planning Department.
Said property is shown on Assessor Map 111 as Lot 2 and lies within the Single Residence B
(SRB) and Historic Districts. (LUHD-615)

WORK SESSION

The applicant Gary Beaulieu was present and said he was half owner of the property. He
reviewed the petition and said he wanted to add a one-car detached garage measuring 12°x20’
and set back 25 feet from the road. He said it would mimic some of the details of the main house
and would have an electric rollup solid wood door.

Chairman Wyckoff asked about the materials. Mr. Beaulieu said it be all pine with similar
asphalt roof shingles, with no windows on the side and a door on the right-hand side leading to
the back porch of the first-floor unit. Mr. Adams said it fit well even though it was a little tight.
Councilor Blalock said the garage was simple and mimicked the house. Chairman Wyckoff said
he appreciated the trim around the garage door. Vice-Chair Doering said the scale and design of
the garage were fine but was concerned about how tight it would be in that space. She said it
wasn’t the Commission’s purview, however, and that there was a lot of space in the back that
mitigated the garage in terms of lot coverage.

Public Comment

Khristina Logan and Michael Graf of 220 South Street and Laurie Kennedy of 244 South Street
were present and joined the table. Ms. Logan asked if the applicant wanted to build the garage
and then sell the property. Mr. Beaulieu said he just wanted to build the garage.

Mr. Graf said he and Ms. Logan were concerned with the proximity to the property line and
wanted the building to be staked out and to see a detailed foundation to ensure that their
arborvitae would survive the construction. Mr. Beaulieu said the arborvitae would be protected.

Ms. Kennedy said the garage’s width would add more building to the structure. Chairman
Wyckoff said the garage would be built on a slab and shouldn’t affect the arborvitae. Other
comments were about not having enough space to walk from the garage, the mass, the fact that
there was still scaffolding and trash, and that nothing had been done in three months. Mr.
Beaulieu said they couldn’t start the project until a year and a half after he bought the property
due to Covid and lack of contractors. Chairman Wyckoff said the applicant would have to build
it exactly the way it was presented or he wouldn’t get an occupancy permit. The driveway was
discussed as to whether it should be cobblestone or concrete pavers. Mr. Cracknell said the
lighting on the garage should be dark-sky compliant.

Mr. Beaulieu said he would like to return for a public hearing and would work with the
neighbors in the meantime.



DECISION OF THE COMMISSION
Vice-Chair Doering moved to close the work session, seconded by City Council Representative
Blalock. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

VII. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Joann Breault
HDC Recording Secretary



MEETING OF
THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

6:30 p.m. June 14, 2023

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman Jon Wyckoff; Vice-Chair Margot Doering; City Council
Representative Rich Blalock; Members Reagan Ruedig, Martin
Ryan, David Adams, Dr. Dan Brown, and Karen Bouffard

MEMBERS EXCUSED:  Alternate Johanna Landis

ALSO PRESENT: Nicholas Cracknell, Principal Planner, Planning Department

Chairman Wyckoff announced that Mr. Cracknell was resigning to accept another position. The
Commissioners, Mayor McEachern, former mayor Rick Becksted, former HDC Chairman Vince
Lombardi, and other members of the public said why they thought Mr. Cracknell was such a
valuable member of the City Staff and that they were sorry to see him go.

l. ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS

1. 135 Daniel Street, Unit A102

The request was for approval for a termination vent. There were questions about how far the vent
would extend from the face of the building.. Cracknell said he would contact the applicant and if

the vent didn’t meet the standard, he would ask the applicant to return to the July meeting.

Stipulation: the vent location shall meet the standard or return for administrative approval at the
July meeting.

2. 18 Walden Street

Mr. Cracknell said the applicant went before the Board of Adjustment and received approval for
placing the condenser on the side of the building and screening it with a simple picket fence.

3. 46-64 Maplewood Avenue
Mr. Cracknell said the applicant submitted a screen for condensers situated in an alleyway.
4, 17 Pray Street

Mr. Cracknell said the application was previously approved for window replacement on the back
addition of the old house. He said the applicant removed the aluminum siding but found



clapboards underneath and then removed those. He said the applicant wanted new clapboards as
a replacement in kind.

Mr. Ryan moved to approve the four administrative items, with the stipulation noted on Item 1.
City Council Representative Blalock seconded. The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0.

1. PUBLIC HEARINGS (OLD BUSINESS)

Ms. Ruedig recused herself from the following petition.

A. Petition of Portsmouth Housing Authority, owner, for property located at 444 Pleasant
Street, wherein permission is requested to allow exterior renovations to existing structures
(replace windows on both structures) as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said
property is shown on Assessor Map 102 as Lot 54 and lies within the General Residence B
(GRB) and Historic Districts.

SPEAKING TO THE PETITION

The applicant was not present. Mr. Cracknell said the Commission previously approved the
doors and thought all the windows were being replaced with those shown on the cut sheet.
Vice-Chair Doering said the window style seemed similar but she didn’t know the material.
Chairman Wyckoff said the windows looked like they were vinyl. Mr. Cracknell said the
building was new and asked if it mattered whether the windows were vinyl or aluminum. Mr.
Ryan said he didn’t think so, and Vice-Chair Doering said it seemed like a replacement in kind.
Chairman Wyckoff opened the public hearing.

SPEAKING TO, FOR, OR AGAINST THE PETITION

No one was present to speak, and Chairman Wyckoff closed the public hearing.

DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Mr. Ryan moved to grant the Certificate of Approval for the application as presented, seconded
by Dr. Brown.

Mr. Ryan said the project would conserve and enhance property values and would be compatible
in design with surrounding properties.

The motion passed by unanimous vote, 7-0, with Ms. Ruedig abstaining.

I1l.  WORK SESSIONS (NEW BUSINESS)

Ms. Ruedig resumed her voting seat. Mr. Adams recused himself from the work session.



1. Work Session requested by Novocure, Inc., owner, for property located at 64 Vaughan
Street, wherein permission is requested to allow the construction of a rooftop pavilion on the
existing structure as per plans on file in the Planning Department. Said property is shown on
Assessor Map 126 as Lot 1 and lies within Character District 5 (CD5), Downtown Overlay and
Historic Districts.

WORK SESSION

The applicant Dean Smith, Associate Director of North American Facilities for Novocure, was
present. He said there were two options for adding a roof pavilion to the existing structure:
Option A, a sloped roof, and Option B, a roof with a flat top to it. He said the footprint would be
the same and that they preferred Option B, the one with a flat top, because of the symmetry. He
said the flat top would match the roof appurtenances already approved, and the slope of that roof
would match the slope from that. He said the flat top would not be glass but a roof structure so
that the mechanicals could be placed in it and that it would also provide some shade. He said the
slope of the fully pitched roof would make the side walls almost a foot shorter. Dr. Brown asked
for more explanation, and it was further discussed. [Video timestamp 43:12]

Ms. Ruedig said she would need to see renderings of the roof from the street view to see how
visible it would be from a regular public way. Councilor Blalock agreed and it was further
discussed. Mr. Smith said he would provide the rendering. Ms. Ruedig said the applicant was
adding a large mass to the top of the building that originally had a flat roof. Mr. Ryan said he
thought it was more of a historic gesture for the building by placing a cap on it than a flat roof;
he said it was a positive element. He said the glass with the flat top had a sunroom language. Mr.
Smith said the blacktop of the roof would be an all green roof system and almost look like a
park. Mr. Ryan said it was an opportunity to put a beautiful top on the building instead of a flat
top like all the other buildings in the north end. Councilor Blalock said he preferred Option A.
Ms. Bouffard said she was concerned about the mass on the roof and what percentage of the roof
would be taken over. Mr. Smith said it would still be under 30 percent of the total roof.

Mr. Cracknell said the applicant went before the Board of Adjustment (BOA) with a more
contemporary design and was denied the variance, so he would have to go before the BOA
again. He said either option would be virtually invisible from any street around the property. He
said the roof setback was 26-28 feet and thought it was a great skyline element. He said he and
the applicant worked with the neighbors on the second cut and thought it was a great way to tie
the two awkward appurtenances, which were the stairwell and the clubhouse. He said the deck
would be big and would be used as a cafeteria and meeting space.

Vice-Chair Doering said it was a big roof and asked how much of the whole building it would
take up. She said she liked the idea of spanning between the two appurtenances because they
seemed awkward. She said she didn’t prefer either option at this time because there wasn’t
enough detail and that it came down to issues of fenestration and materials rather than mass and
shape. She said she saw enough positive tings to move the application to another iteration,
however. Chairman Wyckoff said the roof looked lower on Option A, and it was further
discussed. He said he preferred Option A. He asked if it would be a classic greenhouse look or a
contemporary one. Mr. Smith said he had shown the Commission some ideas but wanted more



guidance. Chairman Wyckoff said he’d like to see classic Victorian details normally, but due to
the building’s location and massing, he thought the aluminum and glass might merge best. Mr.
Ryan suggested that the applicant work with a mechanical engineer to capture the solar gain and
use it throughout the building. Dr. Brown said he liked Option 1 because it was nice to see a
peak for a change. Mr. Smith said the mechanicals would start from the apartment side and the
building would be sealed except for one side that would open to a deck and a green area and get
natural cross breezes. It was further discussed.

Public Comment

Dave Adams of 210 Gates Street said he walked the site and noticed that the roof seemed
disjointed from the building because it was dramatically set back from the edges of the building,
so he didn’t believe there would be confusion as to what the structure was or what happened to
the building. He said he also toured the parking garage and thought the roof might be the most
interesting thing seen from it the garage. He encouraged the Commission to promote it.

Barry Heckler said he was the president of the 25 Maplewood Avenue Provident Bank Building
Condominium Association and that the association had been included in the conversations. He
said they thought the Novocure North American Headquarters should be able to use the deck
year around. He said it could be enclosed, which would cut down on noise and lighting. He said
they were partial to the glass roof with the hip instead of the shed type.

Elizabeth Bratter of 159 McDonough Street said she was concerned that the proposed structure
looked much larger than what was previously proposed and denied. She said she was also
concerned about the fact that some windows would open, which would allow the noise to be
tunneled. She said originally the space was proposed as an outdoor community space but now it
was filled in and all the public was getting was the top structure.

No one else spoke, and Chairman Wyckoff close the public comment session.
DISCUSSION AND DECISION OF THE COMMISSION

Vice-Chair Doering summarized the Commission’s comments. She said there was general
support for the roof structure, but the mass was a concern and clarification on some of the
measurements was necessary; there might be support for something more greenhouse than
pavilion and there was support for both options. Ms. Ruedig thought more people were in favor
of the flat roof instead of the hip. Dr. Brown said the Commission would also need to see views
from the parking lot. Mr. Smith said he was comfortable with the Commission’s feedback.

Ms. Ruedig moved to close the work session, seconded by Councilor Blalock. The motion passed
by unanimous vote, 7-0.

IV. HISTORIC DISTRICT SURVEYED PROPERTIES

Vice-Chair Doering said several Commissioners walked downtown and looked at 11 mostly
commercial buildings that had major renovations in the past 18-20 years. She said they talked



about materials, mass, cornices, and history. She said collating the data would take a while and
that they would be looking at aggregate data and the results would be anonymous. She asked for
feedback from the Commissioners.

Ms. Ruedig said that some of the most interesting and productive things the Commissions could
do were to understand what had happened in the past and discuss it together. She said if they
could do it again, they could plan ahead and ensure that everyone could be there. Mr. Adams
said the more time the Commissioners spent together, the more carefully they could adjust their
individual opinions and communicate more easily with one another. He said he thought it had
been very useful. Councilor Blalock agreed. Mr. Ryan said the Commission was quasi-judicial
and that kicking around ideas outside of meetings could be a bad thing. He said he had a problem
with some of the questions and the way the Commission went about it and was a bit worried
about what someone could do with the report. Chairman Wyckoff agreed. He said all the
Commission was doing was looking at big contemporary structures and asking if they had a
historical context. Vice-Chair Doering said none of the projects were active ones and the reason
she wanted to collate the data and put in numbers was because it wasn’t about the
Commissioners individually scoring anything. She said criticizing a building as it ended up being
built wasn’t necessarily criticizing the decision to make it, but she thought the Commissioners
could learn from the details of buildings. She said it was also a good exercise for those who were
not trained architecturally. It was further discussed. [Video timestamp 1:21:05]

V. ADJOURMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Joann Breault
HDC Recording Secretary



ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

HDC

July 05, 2023

1 Walton Alley

132-134 Middle Street
303 Pleasant Street

3 Walker Street

111 Bridge Street, Unit 205
111 Bridge Street

92 Pleasant Street

70 Court Street

37 Whidden Street

138 Maplewood Avenue
145 Maplewood Avenue
161 Deer Street

179 Pleasant Street

112 Mechanic Street

401 State Street

-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval
-TBD

-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval
-TBD

-TBD

-Recommended Approval
-TBD

-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval
-Recommended Approval

-TBD



1. 1 Walton Alley - Recommended Approval

Background: The applicant is seeking approval for the replacement of windows to match
already replaced windows on the structure.

Staff Comment: Recommended Approval

Stipulations:




City of Portsmouth, NH

LUHD-636 Primary Location
Historic District 1 WALTON ALY
Commission Work Portsmouth, NH 03801

Session or Administrative
Approval Application
Status: Active

Submitted On: 6/16/2023

Owner

WOODS JAMES WILLIAM &
MEINARDI ANNA ROELINE
1WALTON ALY
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

Application Type

6/29/2023

Applicant
2 Mark Gianniny
oJ 603-431-0274
mark@mchenryarchitecture.com
A 4 Market St
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Please select application type from the drop down Alternative Project Address @

menu below

Administrative Approval

Project Information

Brief Description of Proposed Work*

Additional window replacment with previouly approved windows.

& Description of Proposed Work (Planning Staff)

Project Representatives

Relationship to Project If you selected "Other", please state relationship

to project.
Architect pro)



McHENRY ARCHITECTURE

June 15, 2023

Nick Cracknell, Principal Planner
Portsmouth City Hall

1 Junkin Ave

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re: 1 Walton Alley — HDC
Administrative approval

Mr. Cracknell and Board Members:

On behalf of James Woods & Anneke Meirardi, we request administrative approval for
modification to the windows previously approved by this board. At prior public hearings, the
board has approved restoration of the existing windows along the facades facing Gate Street and
Walton Alley with windows on the other two facades replaced with Green Mountain, wood
double-hung windows that match in size and configuration.

At the onset of construction, the existing window sashes were removed and reviewed by window
restorer Rob Lusignan from Hemlock Historic Co. Upon examination his recommendation to
Aaron Henderson, general contractor, were that the sashes are not restorable. Pictures of some
of the sashes and deterioration are included in the attached sheets.

Due to the condition of the existing windows, we request replacement of all windows with the
previously approved Green Mountain units. This will also provide a uniform appearance of all
windows from the outside. Exterior storm windows will be deleted from the scope and remove
visible obstructions. This change will also be in keeping with other properties in the neighborhood
such as the Tobias Langdon house, a few doors away.

Sincerely,

Mark Gianniny, AIA
Principal

Cc: James Woods and Anneke Meinardi
Aaron Henderson

4 Market Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801  T. 603.430.0274  F. 603.430.0247 www.mchenryarchitecture.com



Exhibit A

Image 2

Page 2



o™
Q
(@]
@©
E

Page 3



Exhibit A

Image 2

Page 2



o™
Q
(@]
@©
E

Page 3



Green Mountain Window and Door Co.

MDH 2828

Note: the example above only applics to a 28 x 28 with 7/8” muntins in a 6/6 pattern.

For all other sizes and configurations: determine the overall daylight opening of each sash {without lites) with the formulas on 1.5. Then
multiply the number of bars by the bar width and deduct that number from that overall daylight. Divide this number by the number of lites
for daylight of each lite.

Overall DLO - (sum of all bar widths)
Number of Lites

1.15




S

—
= = N
=
== = — | E !
= | : q - — — ;
=ECEE] - .

Walton Aly - Windows
HDC - Administration approval
July 5, 2023



Mark Gianniny
Polygon

Mark Gianniny
Polygon

Mark Gianniny
Text Box
Walton Aly - Windows
HDC - Administration approval
July 5, 2023


2. 132-134 Middle Street - Recommended Approval

Background: The applicant is seeking approval for the final roofing material and design.

Staff Comment: Recommended Approval

Stipulations:




vy

e

LUHD-635 Primary Location Applicant

Historic District owner & Tracy Kozak
Commission Work TORRINGTON BROWN LLC oJ 603-731-5187

Session or Administrative @ tracyskozak@gmail.com

(20.84 INT) & SINGLE

VENTURE LLC (52.05 INT)

Status: Active
60 K STREET SUITE 302 Portsmouith, New

Submitted On: 6/16/2023 BOSTON. MA 02127 Hampshire 03801

Approval Application

Application Type

Please select application type from the drop down Alternative Project Address @
menu below

134 Middle Street
Administrative Approval

Project Information

Brief Description of Proposed Work*

Reroofing materials - supplemental information to prior approval, as previously
stipulated

& Description of Proposed Work (Planning Staff)

Project Representatives

Relationship to Project If you selected "Other", please state relationship

to project.
Architect pro]

a’,’ City of Portsmouth, NH 6/29/2023

# 3 Congress Street, Suite 1



DRAWING INDEX

Sheet Number Sheet Name
HO.1 Cover Page
H1.1 ROOF PLAN
H2.1 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOS
H2.4 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOS
H3.1 SOUTHWEST ELEVATION
H3.2 NORTHEAST ELEVATION
H3.3 SOUTHEAST ELEVATION
H3.4 NORTHWEST ELEVATION

MATERIAL DATA SHEETS

PROJECT NARRATIVE

Supplemental Reroofing Materials and Dra<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>